STARSS DRAFT NNL06134382R 

Questions and Answers – Set 2

May 2, 2006 


The following answer to Q99 is hereby revised as follows:


“A99.  Yes, the STARSS Contractor will be responsible for their transportation to perform work at the Chesapeake Lighthouse.  See Draft RFP L.12.C.6.(e).”

The following additional questions and answers are hereby provided:

Q106.  For the last procurement, LaRC provided the names for the SEB members at their Pre-Proposal conference will this information be provided for this (STARSS) procurement?



A106.  The STARSS SEB membership has recently changed.  We are awaiting the formal appointment approval and will release the names once approved.
Q107. In Attachment 5, Cost Forms A and B appear to be require that the Contractor provide direct labor rates with bases and rates for their Subcontractors, and that Subcontractor indirect costs be included in the line entitled “Subcontractor Cost without Direct Labor Cost” line item under Other Direct Costs on Form A.  Most Subcontractors consider their indirect rates and the formulas for calculating their fully-burdened direct labor rates to be competition sensitive and/or proprietary information.  Would you please clarify that this is what you are asking for in these forms?    In the past, we have provided our Contractor direct rates and formulas for our labor rates with fully-burdened labor rates for our Subcontractors to the Government.  Our Subcontractors have then provided their direct rates and indirect rates for their labor rates under separate cover to the Government. 


A107.  Please see RFP Section L.12.C.3 which states that prospective 
subcontractors may submit proprietary cost information directly to the 
Government no later than the date and time specified in the instructions for 
receipt of offers for this solicitation.  Subcontractor should also use the 
Attachment 5, Cost Forms A-E to provide their cost information, if they choose to 
provide it directly to the Government.  
Q108.  Section L.12.C.6.b Other Price and Cost Detail Instructions – Equipment and Attachment 5, Cost Form A, Note 6a seem to contradict one another.  In Section L, the RFP provides that for estimating purposes, $185,000 per year is to be used as the assumed cost for all capital equipment necessary for off-site personnel.  In the same paragraph is the statement that “Costs for replacing equipment shall not be charged as a direct cost to the contract.”  On Cost Form A, Note 6a states “Include the annual Government estimate of $185,000 for equipment for the off-site facility specified in RFP L.12.C.6.b as an indirect cost, do not charge as a direct cost” in the Section titled “Other Direct Costs.”

Please clarify, if true, that:

· The RFP estimate of $185,000 for off-site capital equipment is not the same as replacement equipment for Government Furnished Property (GFP), and that a separate estimate for GFP replacement cost is required.

· All equipment, whether for replacement of GFP or for off-site facilities, is to be considered an indirect cost and depreciated in accordance with the Contractor’s accounting policies.

· The inclusion of “Equipment – Indirect” under the Other Direct Costs section of Form A is an error, and that depreciation costs associated with capital equipment would instead be properly included in the indirect costs section.


A108.   The RFP estimate of $185,000 is for all capital equipment, necessary to 
perform the contract at the off-site facility, including any replacement of capital 
equipment.  All equipment, including any replacement of capital equipment, for 
the off-site facility shall be proposed as an indirect cost.  Attachment 5, Cost 
Form A will be revised in the final RFP to remove indirect equipment costs from 
the Other Direct Cost category and include it in a separate category for indirect 
costs.
Q109. Reference the ASDC Evolution Plan, since this document is under development, how will the proposal be evaluated relative to Section C.4.3.1, L.12.B.1 and L.12.B.2, and M.3.A.1 and M.3.A.2?

A109.  The ASDC Evolution Plan is posted to the Bidders Library
Q110.  There are essentially two IT labor categories identified in the Labor Matrix (Section L, Page 12 of 18); Programmer and Systems Administrator.  However, there are no staff identified to provide other IT-related services (e.g.; IT security and database management).  Can you please explain which labor category(s) should be used for these services and what percentage of their time is dedicated to these tasks? 


A110.  Offerors are expected to propose, organize, and assign work in the manner 
that is most effective and efficient to complete the effort.  The approach currently 
being utilized by the incumbent contractor is proprietary information.

Q111. At what stage of transition will the 50-60 planned task orders be available to the contractor?


A111.  The planned tasks are currently posted on the Bidder’s Library.  The 
finalized version of the planned tasks will be provided to the Contractor prior to 
the start of the Phase-In period. 
Q112.  What are the ASDC input data sources and rate projections for the STARSS period of performance? 


A112.  The current list of ASDC Incoming Interfaces are provided in the ASDC 
Evolution Plan on pages 2-4. In FY05, the ASDC ingest rate was approximately 
144,948 files/month, and the Ingest volume was approximately 5.93 TB/month. 
Since the rate projection for the STARSS period of performance depends on the 
data requirements from the data providers that the ASDC will support, we do not 
have rate projections for the STARSS time period.
Q113.  What are the ASDC data archive volume projections for the STARSS period of performance? 


A113.  The current archive growth is approximately 42.3 TB per month. Since the 
archive growth is based on requirements from the data providers, we do not have 
rate projection for the STARSS period of performance.
Q114.  Our understanding is there is a document that describes the ASDC evolution for the next 5-10 years. We request a copy of that document, and would like to discuss the rationale for the proposed evolution paths. 


A114.  The ASDC Evolution Plan is posted on the Bidder’s Library. The plan 
describes ASDC evolution activities through 12/07.
Q115.  What is the plan, status, and schedule milestones for ADIC's AMASS to StorNext Storage Manager Conversion? 


A115.  We should have StorNext Storage Manager serving as the LATIS archive 
before contract turnover.  The Earth Observing System Data and Information 
System (EOSDIS) Core System (ECS) plans are to have the hardware here in 
January and operational in March.
Q116.  What are the architecture, implementation plan, and schedule milestones for combining LATIS and ECS into ANGe by 12/07? 


A116.  System Architecture is described in the ASDC Evolution Plan beginning 
of page 5. The schedule is contained in the ASDC Evolution Plan on pages 16-18.

Q117.  What are the ANGe operational requirements, parameters, and metrics? 


A117.  ANGe overall system requirements (including operational requirements) 
are described in the ASDC Evolution Plan beginning on page 19.

Q118.  Are there plans underway to meet the requirement to reduce operating costs by 25-35% by FY08? What are they? 


A118.  The ASDC Evolution plan is the approach for achieving the 25-35% 
reduction of operating costs.  The ASDC Evolution plan is furnished for 
informational purposes only.  Offerors are not required to detail their approach 
for reducing the ASDC operating costs.
Q119.  On the ASDC IT infrastructure, are there plans to add capacity to the 3STK Powderhorn silos? 


A119.  Plans will be part of the continual evolutionary activities to maintain the 
ASDC.
Q120.  On the ASDC IT infrastructure, are there plans to change the Powderhorn silos to another storage technology? 


A120.  The plans to change the Powerhorn silos to another storage 
technology 
have not yet been determined. 
Q121.  On the ASDC IT infrastructure, what is the plan, status, and schedule milestones for the production platform migration to clusters? 


A121.  The plans, status, and schedule for the ASDC IT Infrastructure have not yet 
been developed and the Implementation plan will be developed when funding is 
approved.
Q122.  On the ASDC IT infrastructure, what are the plans and schedule for the UNIX to Linux support systems migration? 


A122.  There are no specific plans or schedules targeted at migrating the UNIX 
systems to Linux. This will occur naturally as the ANGe system is put into 
production per the schedule in the ASDC Evolution Plan.
Q123.  On ASDC help desk staffing, how many FTEs support the help desk? What specific tasks do they perform? 


A123.  Offerors are expected to propose, organize, and assign work in the manner 
that is most effective and efficient to complete the effort.  The approach currently 
being utilized by the incumbent contractor is proprietary information. Help Desk 
functions are described on page 24 (user services) in the ASDC Evolution 
Document.

Q124.  In DRFP SOW Section 4.0, how are FTEs currently spread across the ASDC functional areas [i.e., 4.1 Customer and Data Services; 4.2 Operations; and 4.3 Systems Engineering]? 


A124.  Offerors are expected to propose, organize, and assign work in the manner 
that is most effective and efficient to complete the effort.  The approach currently 
being utilized by the incumbent contractor is proprietary information.

Q125.  Is there a composite list of processing and storage locations for A-Train products? 


A125.  The Afternoon or "A-Train" satellite constellation consists of 
satellites flying in formation around the globe. CALIPSO, Aqua, and Aura 
are 3 of the 5 satellites that are currently in formation. ASDC supports 
CALIPSO, Clouds and the Earth's Radiant Energy System (CERES) Aqua, 
and Tropospheric Emission Spectrometer (TES) Aura instruments. The Aqua 
and Aura spacecrafts contain multiple instruments on their respective 
platforms and ASDC does not support all of the A-Train instruments.  The 
Earth Science Data and Information System (ESDIS) Project at GSFC may 
have a composite list, but ASDC only has the list of processing and storage 
locations for the instruments that we are responsible for. CALIPSO, CERES 
(Aqua), and TES (Aura) instrument information was shown in the ASDC 
presentation during the pre-solicitation conference.
 
Q126.  The initial baseline Financial Management Report:  The requirement states that this report is due within 30 working days after the effective date of the contract.  Is the effective date of the contract day one of the transition period or day one of the actual contract performance?


A126.   See A50.  The anticipated award date is October 6, 2006 and the 
planned phase-in begins November 1, 2006.  The phase-in start date is the 
effective date of the contract.
Q127.      On the monthly Financial Management Report and the initial baseline Financial Management Report, does the government require further breakdown/delineation within the categories shown in paragraph A?  For example, within the Direct Labor Hours and Direct Labor Dollars, does the government need to see each labor category or is the total Direct Labor Hours and total Direct Labor Dollars sufficient?


A127.  The Financial Management Report and the initial baseline Financial 
Management Report shall be reported in accordance with NASA Procedural 
Requirements (NPR) 9501.2, NASA Contractor Financial Management 
Reporting. The Government requires the reporting of total Direct Labor 
hours/dollars.
 
A128.   When submitting the monthly Financial Management Report via email, is the government looking for an excel file or some other data type?

A128.   The Financial Management Report can be submitted in Microsoft Excel 
or as a pdf file.  The final RFP will be revised accordingly.
 
Q129.  The Conformable Wage Rate Agreement:  The requirement states that this agreement is due within 15 operating days after the effective date of the contract.  Is the effective date of the contract day one of the transition period or day one of the actual contract performance?

A129.  See A126.
 
Q130.    The On and Near-Site Staffing Report:  The requirement states that this report is due within 30 operating days after the effective date of the contract.  Is the effective date of the contract day one of the transition period or day one of the actual contract performance?

A130.  See A126.
 
Q131.   How does the government intend to evaluate the varying skill levels that may be proposed by the different offerors?  

A131.   Each offeror’s proposal will be evaluated for compliance with the RFP, 
technical understanding of the requirements, and cost realism.
  
Q132.   Is each offerors total price going to be compared to a government target price for should cost purposes or is each offerors price going to be evaluated based on its matching and or meeting the requirements of the technical solution proposed?  If it is going to be compared to the government target price, we request a listing of the current incumbent skill mix and skill levels so at not to provide an unfair advantage to the incumbent team.
 

A132.  Each offeror’s proposal will be evaluated in accordance with the FAR, 
NFS and RFP.  As part of this evaluation, NASA will evaluate the realism of each 
offeror’s proposed costs in relation to its technical approach.  In determining the 
realism of each offeror’s costs, NASA will consider the information required by 
Section L.12.C.   See RFP Sections M.3.B. and M.4.C. 

Q133.   Cost Form A, Total Proposed Hours, Costs and Price, by element of cost presumes that the offerors standard accounting system handles the Contractors Off-Site Facility as an indirect cost.  If this is not the case, is the offeror permitted to show the cost for the Off-Site Facility as an ODC and explain in its text (as seemingly allowed by the last sentence in Section L, C, 6(g))?

A133.  The Contractor’s off-site facility costs shall be handled in accordance 
with the Contractor’s accounting system.
 
Q134.   Under Section L, C, 6(b), is the $185,000/year that is to be assumed for all capital equipment necessary for off-site employees the depreciated amount to be shown each year (this assumes a $925,000 initial investment) or is it to be assumed that the offeror 
will be spending $185,000/year and will need to depreciate it accordingly based on purchase date?

A134.  The $185,000/year is an estimate of the annual capital equipment costs, 
including replacement, for the off-site facility personnel.
 
Q135.  Under Section L, C, 6(b) it states that the contractor must replace, with its own equipment, any equipment noted in Exhibit B, List of Government Furnished Property, that reach the end of its useful life and are still required for performance of the SOW.  We request a copy of any life cycle analysis that has been completed on this equipment so that it can be used in developing our estimate of how much equipment may need to be replaced over the life of the contract.

A135.  See A134.
 
Q136.  Who are the members of the Science Advisory Board that was shown in the Science Directorate org chart at the pre-solicitation conference? What is their charter? 

A136.  The Science Advisory Board advises the Science Directorate on general 
scientific direction, investment of resources (to obtain new work), opportunities, 
and any programmatic issues the Director for Science may identify.  The intent is 
to have face to face meeting of the team members twice yearly or more often 
if the demand exists.  The members are made up of personnel from NASA HQ, 
GSFC, and LaRC.

Q137.  What are the responsibility, relationship, and interface between LaRC and CSU concerning Cloudsat? 

A137.  See A93.
 
Q138.  Are there any R&A transition issues concerning on-going field missions and instrumentation development? 

A138.  No, the offeror is not expected to identify any other R& A transition 
issues concerning on-going field missions and instrumentation development.  

 
Q139.  Please clarify whether the Government requires additional information besides the Total Compensation Plans (Prime and Subs) to satisfy the RFP requirements for the Personnel Management section (listed in RFP Section L.12.B Subfactor 2 Mgmt Plan and Org Structure).  If additional information is required, will that information also be excluded from the page limitation?

A139.  L.12.B., Subfactor 2, Personnel Management will be revised in the final 
RFP.  The Government is requesting the Total Compensation Plan in accordance 
with requirements set forth in L.12.B., Subfactor 2, Personnel Management of the 
RFP.  All pages of the Total Compensation Plan are excluded from the page 
count.
 
Q140.   Who is on the SEB, and who is going to be SSO?

A140.  See A106.  The SSA is NASA LaRC Center Director, Lesa Roe.

Q141.  Will the criteria for the award fee be made known before each rating period?  Can we see examples of prior criteria used by the SD?


A141.  The criteria are reflected in the Award Fee Plan and are currently in draft 
form attached to the RFP.  

Q142.  It is expected that the selected contractor will capture nearly all the incumbent employees working on ASRATSS tasks.  This essentially fixes the distribution of labor classifications (i.e. senior vs. junior grades) needed for the contract.  This required distribution is known to the incumbent, but other bidders must guess at it.  A wrong guess will result in unreasonably high or low cost estimates. Can Langley supply a list of current labor grades for each task?  This would allow all bidders to evaluated on a more realistic and fair basis.

A142.   Offerors are expected to propose, organize, and assign work in the 
manner that is most effective and efficient to complete the effort.  The 
approach currently being utilized by the incumbent contractor is proprietary 
information.  Each offeror’s proposal will be evaluated for compliance with the 
RFP, technical understanding of the requirements and cost realism.  Cost 
proposal evaluation will be in accordance with the FAR and NFS.

Q143.  Where can I get more information on NASAs brainbench online testing and certification for system administrators?

A143.  Information on the Brainbench testing utilized by NASA can be found at 
www.brainbench.com.  NASA uses the commercially available Brainbench 
certification tests (i.e. Brainbench does not tailor tests for NASA).  System 
Administrators are required to pass the Brainbench test(s) for the appropriate 
platform(s) they will be administering.

Q144.  Who is on the Science Advisory Board, shown in the org chart for the SD (page 22 of the pre-solicitation conference briefing).  What is the role of this board?

A144.    See A136.  
Q145.  What are the plans or possibilities for a down-select in this proposal selection process?

A145.  There are no plans for a “down-select.”  As set forth in the draft RFP the 
objective is to award without discussions however, the establishment of a 
competitive range is possible.
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